
 

 

Contact: 
Direct Dial: 
E-mail: 
Date: 

Leo Taylor 
01934 634621 
leo.taylor@n-somerset.gov.uk 
Friday, 21 October 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Sir or Madam 
 
The Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel – Thursday, 13 October 2022, 2.00 pm – 
New Council Chamber - Town Hall 
 
A meeting of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel will take place as indicated above.   
 
The agenda is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Assistant Director Legal & Governance and Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 
To: Members of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 
Councillors: 
 
Ciaran Cronnelly (Chair), Caroline Cherry (Vice-Chair), Mark Aplin, Andy Cole, 
Hugh Gregor, Karin Haverson, Sandra Hearne, Ruth Jacobs, Huw James, Ian 
Parker, Timothy Snaden, Roz Willis and Georgie Bigg. 
 
 
 
This document and associated papers can be made available in a different 
format on request. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

Agenda 
  
1.   Public Discussion (Standing Order SSO9)   

 
To receive and hear any person who wishes to address the Panel on matters 
which affect the District and fall within the remit of the Panel. The Chairman will 
select the order of the matters to be heard. Members of the Panel may ask 
questions of the member of the public and a dialogue between the parties can be 
undertaken. Requests to speak must be submitted in writing to the Head of Legal 
and Democratic Services, or the officer mentioned at the top of this agenda letter, 
by noon on the day before. 
  

2.   Apologies for absence and notification of substitutes   
  

3.   Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (Standing Order 37)   
 
A Member must declare any disclosable pecuniary interest where it relates to any 
matter being considered at the meeting. A declaration of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest should indicate the interest and the agenda item to which it relates. A 
Member is not permitted to participate in this agenda item by law and should 
immediately leave the meeting before the start of any debate. If the Member 
leaves the Chamber in respect of a declaration, he or she should ensure that the 
Chairman is aware of this before he or she leaves to enable their exit from the 
meeting to be recorded in the minutes in accordance with Standing Order 37. 
  

4.   Minutes  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
Minutes of the Panel meeting held on 23 June 2022 – to approve as a correct 
record. 
  

5.   Matters referred by Council, the Executive, other Committees and Panels (if 
any)   
  

6.   ICB Performance Report of Primary care and Ambulance services  (Pages 11 
- 24) 
  

7.   Winter Pressures  (Pages 25 - 30) 
  

8.   Healthy Weston Phase 2 outputs from public engagement  (Pages 31 - 88) 
  

9.   Adult Mental Health Needs Assessment and Mental Health Strategy 
development  (Pages 89 - 110) 
  

10.   HOSP Work Plan October 22  (Pages 111 - 114) 
 

 
 
 Exempt Items 

 
Should the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel wish to consider a matter as an 
Exempt Item, the following resolution should be passed -  
 

Page 2



 

 

“(1) That the press, public, and officers not required by the Members, the Chief 
Executive or the Director, to remain during the exempt session, be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of the following item of business on the ground 
that its consideration will involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Section 100I of the Local Government Act 1972.” 
 
Also, if appropriate, the following resolution should be passed –  
  
“(2) That members of the Council who are not members of the Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel be invited to remain.” 
 
Mobile phones and other mobile devices 
 
All persons attending the meeting are requested to ensure that these devices are 
switched to silent mode. The chairman may approve an exception to this request 
in special circumstances. 
 
Filming and recording of meetings 
 
The proceedings of this meeting may be recorded for broadcasting purposes. 
 
Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press 
and public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to 
do so, as directed by the Chairman.  Any filming must be done as unobtrusively as 
possible from a single fixed position without the use of any additional lighting, 
focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and having regard to 
the wishes of any members of the public present who may not wish to be filmed. 
As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the 
Chairman or the Assistant Director Legal & Governance and Monitoring Officer’s 
representative before the start of the meeting so that all those present may be 
made aware that it is happening. 
 
Members of the public may also use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social 
media to report on proceedings at this meeting. 
 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 
On hearing the alarm – (a continuous two tone siren) 
 
Leave the room by the nearest exit door.  Ensure that windows are closed. 
 
Last person out to close the door. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings. 
 
Do not use the lifts. 
 
Follow the green and white exit signs and make your way to the assembly point. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until authorised to do so by the Fire Authority. 
 
Go to Assembly Point C – Outside the offices formerly occupied by Stephen 
& Co 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Leo Taylor,  01934 634621 HEA minutes 230622 
 

Minutes 
of the Meeting of 

The Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Thursday, 23 June 2022 
New Council Chamber - Town Hall 
 
Meeting Commenced: 2.30 pm Meeting Concluded: 4.30 pm 
 
Councillors: 
 
Ciaran Cronnelly (Chairman) 
Hugh Gregor 
Sandra Hearne 
Ian Parker 
Roz Willis 
 
Also in attendance: Georgie Bigg (co-opted Member) 
 
Apologies: Councillors:   Caroline Cherry (Vice-Chairman) Mark Aplin, Andy Cole, Karin 
Haverson, Ruth Jacobs, Huw James and Timothy Snaden. 
 
Health colleagues in attendance: Colin Bradbury (BNSSG Clinical Commissioning 
Group); Andrew Hollowood and Ian Barrington (Bristol Hospitals Bristol and Weston NHS 
Trust); Dr Lou Farbus and Lisa Chivers (NHS England); Dr Geoff Woodin, Clinical Director 
for CAMHS. 
 
Officers in attendance: Matt Lenny (Public Health), Jo Purser (Adult Social Services), 
Leo Taylor (Corporate Services). 
 
  
HEA 
1 

Election of the Vice-Chairman for the 2022-23 Municipal Year 
 
Resolved: that Councillor Caroline Cherry be elected Vice-Chairman for the 2022-
23 Municipal Year. 
  
  

HEA 
2 

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (Standing Order 37) 
 
None. 
  

HEA 
3 

Minutes 
 
Resolved: that the minutes of the meeting held on 20th April 2022 be approved as 
a correct record.  
  

HEA Annual NSC directorate statements and health partner plans for 2022-23 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2 
 

Leo Taylor,  01934 634621 HEA minutes 230622 
 

4  
Members noted that due to a combination of the impact of the rail strike today and 
sickness, officers due to update Members on NHS England Commissioning 
Operational Plan had been unable to attend.  The corresponding report would 
therefore be taken as read.      
  
The Director of Public Health and the Assistant Director Adult Services presented 
their respective Directorate’s Annual Directorate Statements for 2022/23.  This set 
out the Directorates’ strategic and specific commitments for the year ahead.   
  
Officers responded to Members’ comments and queries as follows: 
  
(1)        Covid-19 testing – The Director of Public Health (DPH) acknowledged that 
there were challenges around the changes to national testing policy but 
emphasised that there was ongoing monitoring.  They were seeing more infections 
but at a lower level of risk. He urged the everyone to continue to engage positively 
in addressing what was a preventable harm.     
(2)        What can realistically be done about inequalities in North Somerset? 
South Ward was still the most deprived neighbourhood in the district – The DPH 
acknowledged the challenges but emphasised the need for working with the 
community to find place-led solutions that would make a difference, referencing as 
an example progress around breastfeeding.  The Area Director (BNSSG CCG) 
spoke about wider developments in Health and Social care, referring to the new 
Integrated Care System (ICS) with focus. through partnership, on the wider 
determinants of health, supporting social and economic development and 
improved access to services supporting health and wellbeing. 
(3)        The private sector housing market and social housing need: the extent to 
which the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWBS) was addressing this? – 
Members proposed some joint work with the with the Adult Services and Housing 
Scrutiny Panel (ASH) to consider and seek to address supply and tenancy 
concerns – In response, the Director of Public Health referred to a key element of 
the Council’s Housing Strategy: an audit (stock condition) survey of private sector 
housing supply was being undertaken and an assessment of associated health 
impacts would be considered as a function of the JHWBS.   
  
Concluded:  
(1)        that the reports referred to above be noted and taken into account in the 
development of the Panel’s work plan going forward. 
(2)        that a HOSP-led briefing on health impacts, following the completion of the 
housing stock conditions survey be provided.  
  
  

HEA 
5 

Dental Services in North Somerset 
 
The item opened with a presentation by the Chairman of Healthwatch setting out 
qualitative feedback from users of dental services in North Somerset over 
2021/22.  This included concerns raised about de-registration from dental 
practices, difficulties accessing appointments, cost of treatment and pressure to 
go private.  She said the dedicated helpline was welcome, but it was important 
that this was adequately signposted and that the correct information was in place. 
  
This was followed by a presentation from the Head of Stakeholder Engagement 
(NHS England South West – the commissioner of dental services in the region).   

Page 6



3 
 

Leo Taylor,  01934 634621 HEA minutes 230622 
 

  
Taking into account Healthwatch’s local feedback and referring to the attached 
NHS England report, the Head of Stakeholder Engagement responded as follows: 
  

       in the process of restoring of face-to-face treatment (following Covid-19 
lockdowns), Dental Care Hubs were established to better respond to people 
needing urgent care and unregistered patients; 

       urgent care was being prioritised (with no need for registration) and there 
was no reason that anyone should have to wait 5 weeks for treatment; 

       it was not the first time that reports of pressure to go private had been 
heard and anyone encountering this was urged to report this to NHS 
England; and 

       she referred Members to the range of initiatives set out in the Dental 
Reform Program (detailed in the report) 

  
She responded to Members’ specific comments and queries as follows: 
  
(1)        The initiatives (particularly the dedicated helpline) were welcome but how 
were they signposted – When a patient calls111 they need to select the dental 
helpline.  Failure to do so would see them directed to a different pathway and this 
seemed to be where problems could occur. 
(2)        The lack a visiting community dentist (particularly in respect of the service 
used by some care homes) – The HSE was concerned to hear that there 
appeared to be some gaps in the provision of this service and she speculated that 
this may be about delays in the restoration of services following lockdown.  She 
agreed to look into this.  
  
In drawing discussions to a close the Chairman commented that that significant 
numbers of people in the district were struggling to get appointments and nothing 
he had heard in the item had given him assurance that this was being adequately 
addressed.   
  
Concluded:  
  
(1)        that the presentation and report be received; and 
  
(2)        that the Panel review the district’s dental health service provision in early 
Autumn to consider progress. 
  

HEA 
6 

Overview of Eating Disorders 
 
The Clinical Director/regional director for CAHMS presented the report setting out 
an overview of eating disorder service for people across all ages.  
  
He said that we were doing comparatively well in BNSSG with just three patients 
waiting for treatment.  Moving away from centralised commissioning, a new care 
model was being introduced, delivered via a provider collaborative programme.  
This was successfully addressing inefficiencies in the centralised model, 
reinvesting resource in community settings where people were treated as close to 
home as possible 
  
In response to queries and concerns raised by Members in respect of referrals to 
CAHMS in the district, he clarified the referral criteria (based on the clinical 
evidence base) was a 1-week urgent turnaround where there were immediate 

Page 7



4 
 

Leo Taylor,  01934 634621 HEA minutes 230622 
 

physical risks for patients and the longer 4-week turnaround for non-urgent cases - 
referring by way of context to a 90% increase in referrals since the onset of Covid-
19. 
  
In response to concerns about inpatient waiting lists, he outlined the available 
number of beds in the wider area (none available in-district for specialist eating 
disorders) but emphasised that there was just one patient in North Somerset 
waiting for a bed.   Responding to a query on the reason for the lack of any 
Paediatric Intensive Care Unites (PICUs), he said these were not fit for purpose in 
respect of the current working pathways.  They would be commissioning 
something different in the South West.  
  
Concluded: that the report be received. 
  
  

HEA 
7 

BNSSG Healthy Weston Phase 2 
 
The Area Director North Somerset (BNSSG CCG) and Managing Director and Site 
Medical Director (University Hospital’s Bristol and Weston – Weston Division) 
presented the report updating Members on progress made by the BNSSG Healthy 
Weston Phase Two programme team in developing and implementing plans for 
public engagement on the new model of care for Weston General Hospital.   
Members noted that the proposed public engagement would start on 25th June 
and were asked to feed back on the 5 key engagement themes set out in section 4 
of the report, thereby helping to inform plans for implementation.  
  
In responding to get the messaging out about the engagement, Members 
suggested Town and Parish noticeboards, websites and newsletters; supermarket 
and public transport noticeboards.  
  
Concern was raised that there was a public perception that anyone requiring 
longer than 24 hours care was transferred to Hospitals in Bristol or Taunton. In 
response the NHS representatives emphasised this was a recognition that this 
misconception needed to be addressed very clearly – the focus needed to be on 
improvement.  It was also acknowledged that the dedicated transport service 
(where passengers were transferred but minimising out-of-district lengths of stay) 
was also a key message that needed further traction with the public. 
  
There were also concerns about recruitment challenges, potentially undermining 
potential at the hospital. Key to addressing this was confronting perceptions of 
uncertainty about the hospital’s future and the new ways of working - 
fundamentally what Healthy Weston was about. 
  
Concluded: that the report be received and Members’ comments be forwarded to 
relevant officers in the form of the minutes. 
  

HEA 
8 

The Panel's Work Plan 
 
The Chairman reviewed the current work plan and it was agreed that the following 
topics would be added to the list of proposed items/work streams:  
  

       Housing impacts on health: possible joint work with the Adult Services 

Page 8



5 
 

Leo Taylor,  01934 634621 HEA minutes 230622 
 

Policy and Scrutiny Panel 
       Panel Inquiry Day: work to commence on scoping the project with the aim 

of planning the Inquiry Day in the Autumn 
       Integrated Care Board/Integrated Care Partnerships briefing 
       Health and Wellbeing Action Plan/Needs Assessment update 
       Dentistry Services update 
       Eating Disorders update 
       Primary Care Recruitment 

  
Concluded: that the work item be updated in accordance with the above. 
  
 

 
 
 
 

   
Chairman 

 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



North Somerset Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel

13th October 2022

Item 1: ICB performance 
report of primary care 
and ambulance services 

Colin Bradbury

Director of Strategy, Partnerships & Performance

P
age 11 A

genda Item
 6



Primary Care

P
age 12



Context

■ Primary Care activity exceeded pre-pandemic levels in July 2020

■ New models of care have continued following the learning from 

Covid19

■ The Covid vaccination programme continues to be a priority 

alongside day to day business

■ Multiple programmes of work are underway to move care into the 

community requiring general practice support

P
age 13



Current GP Access Position 
Key Messages:

• Face to face continues to increase (54%)

• Online Consultations stabilising at 

around 12% in line with increased face to 

face and telephone consultations 

(stabilising at around 34%) as preferred 

methods. Video continues to be an 

option but whilst helpful during Covid is 

the least preferred method now

• The largest proportion of activity remains 

same day (55%)

• Pre-planned long term condition 

management and patient choice account 

for some longer duration times
• More than 5.5m appointments were carried 

out in GP practices in BNSSG during 2021, 

with a forecasted 7.3m for 2022/23

P
age 14



GP Patient Survey 2022 results 
■ Results across our area are above the national average for people’s overall 

experience (75% good compared to 72% national), the helpfulness of receptionists 

(85% compared to 82%), the satisfaction of appointment offered (74% compared to 

72%) and for confidence and trust in the healthcare professional (95% yes compared 

to 93% nationally)

■ We also recognise there are some areas for improvement and we have highlighted 

some of the access work we are doing

P
age 15



Looking Ahead

■ Flu and covid vaccination campaign from September for over 50s in 

addition to other specific cohorts (clinical at risk, carers, health and care 

workers, household contacts of people with immunosuppression)

■ Working with our PCNs to develop backlog recovery approaches

■ National commitment to release some PCN funding to support access 

over winter

■ Continued focus on growing the workforce and supporting retention

■ Public messaging

P
age 16



Ambulance 

Performance

P
age 17



8

Data source: M032 - SWASFT A&E Monthly Commissioners Report 

Ambulance Incident Outcomes – July to August

• Hear and Treat percentage decreased from 27.6% to 21.2%.  This is better than the same period in 19/20 (12.2%).

• See and Treat percentage increased from 31.3% to 31.5%.  This is worse than the same period in 19/20 (32.3%).

• See and Convey (A&E Department) percentage increased from 38.2% to 42.2%. This is better than the same period in 19/20 (49.2%).

• See and Convey (Other Destination) percentage increased from 2.8% to 3.1%.  This is better than the same period in 19/20 (6.2%).

SWASFT Incident Outcomes –

BNSSG ICB – August

P
age 18



9

Data source: M032 - SWASFT A&E Monthly Commissioners Report 

Ambulance handovers & Time lost – July to August

• Total number of handovers over 15 minutes improved from 716 to 620.  This 

is worse than the same period in 19/20 (328).

• Total number of handovers improved from 843 to 766. This is better than the 

same period in 19/20 (1,019).

• The total time lost improved from 1,220 hours to 863 hours. This is worse 

than the same period in 19/20 (58 hours).

• The longest individual handover in July was 10h42m19s.

Ambulance handover Standards – July to August

• % within 15 minutes improved from 15.1% to 19.1% but failed the 

65% standard.

• % within 30 minutes improved from 36.1% to 47.7% but failed the 

95% standard.

• % within 60 minutes improved from 56.1% to 65.3% but failed the 

100% standard.

• Performance against all 3 standards was worse than the same 

period in 19/20.

Ambulance Handovers

WGH – August

P
age 19



10

Data source: M032 - SWASFT A&E Monthly Commissioners Report 

Ambulance handovers & Time lost – July to August

• Total number of handovers over 15 minutes worsened from 1,845 to 1,883.  This 

is worse than the same period in 19/20 (544).

• Total number of handovers worsened from 2,043 to 2,241.  This is better than 

the same period in 19/20 (2,251).

• The total time lost worsened from 2,952 hours to 3,372 hours.  This is worse 

than the same period in 19/20 (68 hours).

• The longest individual handover in July was 16h52m18s.

Ambulance handover Standards – July to August

• % within 15 minutes improved from 9.7% to 12.1% but failed the 

65% standard.

• % within 30 minutes improved from 26.3% to 30.8% but failed the 

95% standard.

• % within 60 minutes improved from 48.3% to 51.4% but failed the 

100% standard.

• Performance against all 3 standards was worse than the same 

period in 19/20.

Ambulance Handovers

BRI – August

P
age 20



11

Data source: M032 - SWASFT A&E Monthly Commissioners Report 

Ambulance handovers & Time lost – July to August

• Total number of handovers over 15 minutes worsened from 2,078 to 2,190.  This 

is worse than the same period in 19/20 (814).

• Total number of handovers worsened from 2,407 to 2,678.  This is similar to the 

same period in 19/20 (2,676).

• The total time lost improved from 2,872 hours to 1,349 hours.  This is worse than 

the same period in 19/20 (105 hours).

• The longest individual handover in August was 8h19m38s.

Ambulance handover Standards – July to August

• % within 15 minutes improved from 13.6% to 18.2% but failed the 

65% standard.

• % within 30 minutes improved from 42.9% to 56.2% but failed the 

95% standard.

• % within 60 minutes improved from 67.8% to 68.9% but failed the 

100% standard.

• Performance against all 3 standards was worse than the same 

period in 19/20.

Ambulance Handovers

NBT – August

P
age 21



Category 1 Average Duration (min:sec)

BNSSG average response time improved to 9m30s.  The 7 min standard 

was last achieved in May 2021.  This is worse than the same period in 

19/20 (6m12s).

Category 2 Average Duration (hr:min:sec)

BNSSG average response time improved to 42m00s.  The 18 min standard 

was last achieved in July 2020.  This is worse than the same period in 

19/20 (24m24s).

Category 1 90th Percentile Duration (min:sec)

BNSSG performance improved with 90% responded to in 16m36s.  The 15 

min standard was last achieved in August 2021.  This is worse than the 

same period in 19/20 (10m18s).

Category 2 90th Percentile Duration (hr:min:sec)

BNSSG performance improved with 90% responded to in 1h29m18s.  The 

40 min standard was last achieved in August 2020.  This is worse than the 

same period in 19/20 (50m48s).

12

SWASFT Response Times – August

P
age 22



Category 3 90th Percentile Duration (hr:min:sec)

BNSSG performance improve in August with 90% responded to in 

5h32m06s.  The 2 hour standard has not been achieved since July 

2020.  This is worse than the same period in 19/20 (2h38m18s).

Category 4 90th Percentile Duration (hr:min:sec)

BNSSG performance improved in August with 90% responded to in 

7h20m18s. The 3 hour standard has not been achieved since June 

2020.  This is worse than the same period in 19/20 (2h38m24s)

13

SWASFT Response Times – August

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



North Somerset Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel

13th October 2022

Item 2: Winter Pressures

Colin Bradbury

Director of Strategy, Partnerships & Performance

P
age 25 A

genda Item
 7



Context

• NHS England have released to the Integrated Care Board an additional 

£14.2 M of revenue and budget 4.539M of capital to deliver capacity 

increases over winter.  This is in line with our July 22 planning submission

• Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership have identified additional 

schemes which will support urgent care flow and will have an indirect 

benefit to general and acute bed and bed equivalent

• The Winter Assurance Framework and its supporting metrics will be 

monitored weekly at ICS level to support delivery of the actions

P
age 26



National priorities

1) 111 call abandonment.

2) Mean 999 call answering times.

3) Category 2 ambulance response times.

4) Average hours lost to ambulance handover delays 

per day.

5) Adult general and acute type 1 bed occupancy 

(adjusted for void beds).

6) Percentage of beds occupied by patients who no 

longer meet the criteria to reside.

P
age 27



P
age 28



P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
October 2022 
 

Report of: BNSSG Healthy Weston Phase 2  

Title: Themes from an 8-week public engagement exercise on the new model of care for Weston 
General Hospital set out within the Healthy Weston 2 programme. 

Ward: N/A 

Officer Presenting Report: Colin Bradbury, Andy Hollowood 

Contact Email Address: Helen.edelstyn@nhs.net;  

Recommendations 
The committee is asked to: 
 

1. Note the outputs from the 8 week public engagement exercise on the new model of 
care for Weston General Hospital 

1. Executive Summary 
Local clinicians have developed a model that builds on the progress made as a result of 
Healthy Weston Phase 1 and the merger in 2020 between Weston Area Health Trust and 
University Hospitals Bristol. This model will: 
 

• Preserve the current 14/7 A&E service at Weston, seeing the same range of people and 
providing the same treatments as today 

• Deliver better outcomes for patients of all ages. This includes using digital technology to 
get specialist opinion and, if someone needs specialist inpatient treatment, who is not 
suitable for older people’s services or surgical care (e.g. appendicitis or broken bones), 
transferring them to larger centres that can deliver better outcomes and shorter lengths 
of stay in hospital 

• Give a clear and sustainable service model that is more likely to attract key staff to 
come and work at Weston, building on recent success of teams both in the hospital and 
in the community who have been able to attract new staff to come and work in Weston 

• Drive further integration with local community and primary care services 
• Mean that many more people can be treated locally at Weston. 

 
More than 5,000 members of the public, patients and carers, staff and a wide range of other 
stakeholders have contributed to the Healthy Weston programme, including helping to identify 
priorities, developing, and testing models, providing feedback, and highlighting areas for 
further development. 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Helen.edelstyn@nhs.net


2 
 

We continued this strong focus on engagement as we delivered an 8-week period of public 
engagement between June and August to help plan the practical implementation of Healthy 
Weston Phase 2.  
 
The feedback and insight from this engagement period, is set out within this report, and will 
further inform and strengthen our understanding of the perceived impacts of the new model of 
care and what people would like to see done to mitigate any challenges.   

2. Introduction 
The North Somerset Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel (HOSP) met on 20 April 2022 and 
decided that the preferred model put forward for Healthy Weston Phase 2 should be 
considered a process of service improvement. This model was then subject to evaluation by 
clinicians, managers, and patient representatives at an independently chaired evaluation 
workshop on 21 April 2022.  This workshop used evaluation criteria that had received support 
in advance from the North Somerset HOSP. The workshop considered two clinical model 
options against the evaluation criteria. A consensus recommendation of Option 2 as the 
preferred option was put forward and ratified by the Healthy Weston Steering Group on 31 
May. A final report from the South West Clinical Senate Review Panel held on 31 March has 
been received. The report confirms the Clinical Senate’s assurance of the preferred model. 
 
On 7 June 2022, the Bristol, North Somerset, and South Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group Governing Body [BNSSG CCG GB], agreed the Healthy Weston Phase 
2 Outline Business Case, which set out the preferred model, and confirmed a commitment to a 
dedicated period of public engagement building on the existing engagement work that has 
already been undertaken. This cover report sets out the outputs from public engagement 
between 20 June and 14 August 22.  
 
Further detail on the preferred model of care for Weston General Hospital, presented in the 
Outline Business Case to BNSSG CCG GB on 7 June can be found at Appendix A. 

3. What we achieved through public engagement 
Given our extensive previous engagement activities to develop and test the Healthy Weston 
Phase 2 model, the focus of this engagement period was on gaining information to further 
inform our implementation plans. To achieve this, we undertook 8 weeks of active listening 
and engagement, followed by one month of drawing together themes and ideas that will further 
inform implementation plans. 
 
Between 20 June and 14 August 2022, we asked members of the public, staff, people who 
might be particularly affected and those that had not been involved before to help us plan 
practical next steps. We promoted opportunities to get involved by:  
 

• advertising using newspaper articles, webpages, social media, pop-up stands at 
hospitals, videos, existing meetings, and the staff intranet and newsletters 

• directly inviting community groups and partner organisations, members of the 
Healthier Together Citizen’s Panel, hospital staff and people on our mailing lists 

• working with others, such as placing leaflets, posters and website links in health and 
social care organisations, and attending existing meetings of community groups and 
staff 

 

Page 32



3 
 

In total, we heard from 890 people during this engagement period. This was more than our 
target of up to 500 people, and they were from a range of different areas, age groups and 
roles:  
 

• three quarters were members of the public, community groups or other groups and one 
quarter were NHS staff 

• two thirds lived in Weston, Worle and villages or other parts of North Somerset. The rest 
were mainly from Bristol and South Gloucestershire 

• two thirds were women. About 1 in 10 were from minority ethnic groups. One third wee 
aged under 50 years, one third 50 to 65 years and one third older than 65. One quarter 
had a disability or long-term health issue. 

4. People and stakeholders we engaged with  
Our aim in this ‘planning for implementation’ period was to engage with: 
 

• those who are interested in identifying potential solutions to the key themes we are 
prioritising 

• groups that we have engaged with less in our previous engagement activities 
• groups that may be affected by the planned Phase 2 approach, including any groups 

identified by our Equalities Impact Assessment as potentially negatively impacted  
 
The feedback received reflects these focus areas and many of the groups identified in our 
stakeholder list, including feedback from transport companies, disability access groups [NS 
People First, Deaf community], Patient Public Groups, multicultural groups, a men’s health 
group, BNSSG Citizen’s Panel and staff groups. Whilst the team emailed all groups on the 
stakeholder list and followed this up with a telephone call offering the group someone to visit or 
host an online meeting to listen to feedback about the Healthy Weston 2 plans this wasn’t 
always taken up by the group. 
 
Further detail on the stakeholder’s we engaged with is set out in the HW2 Engagement 
Themes report in appendix B. 

5. Focus for this phase in engagement 
Based on learning from earlier engagement for Phase 2 and formal consultation from Phase 1 
of the Healthy Weston programme, our Equality Impacts Assessment and review of our 
proposed approach by groups such as North Somerset Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel, 
South West Clinical Senate and patient and staff reference group, five themes were agreed for 
engagement.  
 
The five themes are 
 

1. How should we let people know about plans for Weston General Hospital? We are keen 
to continue to engage and listen to people as we begin putting plans into action. 

2. Most services at Weston General Hospital will continue as they are now, with services 
for all ages including maternity, children’s services, and adults’ services. Are we clear 
that there will be services for all ages at Weston General Hospital?  

3. What could we do to encourage people to have a planned operation at Weston General 
Hospital? E.g., advertising shorter waiting times? 

Page 33



4 
 

4. Some of our plans mean that people will travel to another hospital further away for their 
specialist care. What practical things could health services do to help if people and 
visitors are at a hospital further away from home? For example, support with technology 
to help people stay in touch with loved ones. 

5. How could we mitigate any concerns staff at the Trust running Weston General Hospital 
may have? 

6.Key themes from what we heard 
An independent team has compiled the themes from the engagement, including the things 
from the feedback that we need to consider in our onward planning. The theme summary from 
the independent team is set out in appendix B. The following paragraphs set out the headlines 
from the independent report.  
 
Overall, the people we engaged with were positive about the plans for Weston General 
Hospital: 

• The survey asked people whether they agreed or disagreed that ‘the plans will improve 
Weston General Hospital. Of the survey responses, 73% agreed that the plans will 
improve Weston General Hospital.  

• In meetings and pop-up stands people were also positive about the overall vision for 
developing Weston General Hospital 

• 84% of survey responses liked the idea of having more care for older people at Weston 
General Hospital 

• 88% of survey responses liked the plan to offer more planned operations at Weston 
General Hospital, and 75% said that they would be happy to have planned surgery at 
Weston General Hospital 

• NHS staff provided similar feedback as members of the public. NHS staff were just as 
likely as members of the public to think that the plans would improve Weston General 
Hospital 

 

The responses also suggested things that we could do to strengthen the approach and work in 
a joined-up way. Suggestions included:  

• focusing more on transport and parking, such as liaising with transport providers to 
increase direct public transport links between hospitals  

• the need to proactively promote and build the reputation of Weston General Hospital 
• undertaking detailed work on staff morale, retention and wellbeing to make sure that the 

plans could be implemented and sustained, and also provide a staff transport service 
between hospital sites 

• more integrated planning. Some responses said that the plans rely on integrated work 
with social care, transport, and other services to help people leave hospital quickly. 

‘Always good to know that planned improvements are underway. The overriding story 
coming through is the increasing backlog of demand for medical procedures. A positive 
newsfeed on how Weston General Hospital is proactively working to combat this would help 
promote its plans’ [Bristol resident, via Citizen’s Panel]

Page 34



5 
 

Survey responses sometimes stated that the opening hours of the A&E department should be 
extended, however we were not seeking feedback about this during this engagement period as 
no change to A&E is planned as part of Healthy Weston phase 2 programme of work. 

Other responses were worried whether we would have the money and workforce to implement 
the plans. 

 

 

 

Further detail on the themes from the engagement with is set out in the HW2 Engagement 
Themes report in appendix B. 

7.How we will use what we learn 
The theme summary will be reviewed by the Patient and Staff Reference Groups and the 
Healthy Weston programme team. We will then use the suggestions and what we learnt during 
this engagement period to: 
 

• inform and update our implementation plan  
• update our impact assessments 
• develop a communications strategy to support the implementation period, including staff 

consultation 
• continue to engage with the public, patients, staff and other key stakeholders 

 
The programme will prepare a ‘you said, we did’ document listing how the suggestions were 
considered and what, if anything, is being done as a result 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

‘There might be some upset surrounding the plans so there needs to be a campaign to 
highlight the benefits as much as possible and build up the reputation’ [North Somerset 
resident resident, via Citizen’s Panel]

Page 35



6 
 

 

Appendix A: New Model of Care for Weston General Hospital 
Weston General Hospital will: 
 

• become a centre of surgical excellence. This means thousands more planned 
operations for people of all ages will be carried out 

• become a centre of excellence for older people’s care. This means it will provide 
more care for people who are frail, in addition to all the usual services for people of all 
ages  

• help more people go home quickly after an emergency. It will have units for assessing 
and treating patients quickly.  

 

 

Weston General Hospital will 
continue to provide A&E services 
from 8am to 10pm, exactly the 
same as for the last 5 years.  
 

Other services at Weston General 
Hospital will continue to be provided 
and improved the same as now, 
such as outpatient appointments, 
maternity care, children’s services, 
cancer care, diagnostic tests like x-
rays, intensive care, emergency 
surgery and stroke rehabilitation, for 
people of all ages. 
 
 
 
Under the proposed new model, inpatient medical specialties are concentrated in other 
surrounding hospital leaving Weston to focus on developing centres of excellence. This will 
mean all people in an ambulance, other than those with conditions for which there are existing 
established pathways (e.g., major trauma), would be taken to Weston General Hospital for 
assessment and initial treatment. If, on assessment, they need inpatient medical care for 
longer (other than people who would benefit from treatment in the new centre of excellence for 
older people or emergency surgery) they would be transferred to another local hospital for their 
care. 
 
This option ensures that Weston General Hospital:  

• treats the majority of emergency cases at Weston  
• reduces the number of non-elective beds displaced to neighbouring hospitals  
• gives Weston staff a wider range of patients to treat, thereby aiding recruitment and 

retention. 
 
 

Page 36



7 
 

Appendix B: HW2 engagement themes summary 
 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 39



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 40



 
 

• 

• 

• 

 

73%

75%

88%

84%

83%

73%

67%

84%

91%

81%

79%

68%

Understand why some people will transfer for unplanned
care

Would have planned surgery at Weston General Hospital

Like plan to offer more planned operations at Hospital

Like plan to have more care for older people at Hospital

Agree Weston General Hospital will provide services for
all ages

Agree plans will improve Weston General Hospital

% of Weston & Worle residents who agree % of all participants who agree

Page 41



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 42



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

Page 43



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 44



 
 

 

 

Page 45



 
 

 

Page 46



 
 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 47

https://bnssghealthiertogether.org.uk/healthy-weston-phase-2/
https://bnssghealthiertogether.org.uk/documents/healthy-weston-phase-2-engagement-leaflet/


 
 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 49



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 Page 50



 
 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 51



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 52



 
 

• 

• 

• 

Agree
73%

Disagree
27%

Page 53



 
 

 

90%

83%

87%

68%

South Gloucestershire

Bristol

Other parts of North
Somerset

Weston, Worle and
villages

Page 54



 
 

Page 55



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 56



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 57



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 58



 
 

 

Page 59



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 60



 
 

 

Page 61



 
 

• 

• 

• 

Agree
81%

Disagree
19%

Agree
83%

Disagree
17%

Page 62



 
 

• 

• 

 

 

 

91%

79%

78%

84%

65+

50-64 years

30-49 years

Under 30 years

89%

92%

92%

79%

South
Gloucestershire

Bristol

Other parts of
North Somerset

Weston, Worle and
villages

Page 63



 
 

• 

• 

• 

91%

78%

85%

84%

65+

50-64 years

30-49 years

Under 30 years

100%

100%

90%

81%

South Gloucestershire

Bristol

Other parts of North
Somerset

Weston, Worle and
villages

Agree
84%

Disagree
16%

Page 64



 
 

• 

• 

 

85%

75%

92%

91%

South Gloucestershire

Bristol

Other parts of North Somerset

Weston, Worle and villages

Agree
88%

Disagree
12%

Page 65



 
 

• 

• 

• 

82%

72%

Men

Women

64%

49%

85%

84%

South Gloucestershire

Bristol

Other parts of North
Somerset

Weston, Worle and
villages

Agree
75%

Disagree
25%

Page 66



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 67



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 68



 
 

Page 69



 
 

  

• 

• 

 

89%

85%

85%

67%

South Gloucestershire

Bristol

Other parts of North
Somerset

Weston, Worle and
villages

Agree
73%

Disagree
27%

Page 70



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 71



 
 

 

Page 72



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 73



 
 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 74



 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 75



 
 

Page 76



Themes from public engagement 

June – August 2022

Turning Healthy Weston plans into reality

P
age 77



2

Background

Between 20 June and 14 August, an eight week period of public engagement was delivered 
to inform practical next steps, and to gather ideas around how to let people know what is 
happening

An independent organisation has provided analysis and reporting to summarise themes from 

the engagement

We particularly wanted to listen to:

➢ Anyone interested in sharing practical ways to address issues previously identified

➢ People and groups we have heard less from during previous engagement

➢ Groups that may be more affected by the plans

P
age 78



3

Who we heard from

Total response rate: 657 responses representing 
890 people 

10% from 
ethnic 

minority 
groups

25% NHS 
employees

14% parent 
of child 

under 18
69% female

4% 
member of 

the 
LGBTQ+ 

community

27% have a 
disability or 
long term 
condition

6%

24%

37%

33%

Age

Under 30

30-49

50-64

65+

46%

20%

18%

12%

3% 1%

Geographic Area

Weston, Worle &
surrounding villages

Other parts of North
Somerset

Bristol

South Gloucestershire

Somerset

Other

P
age 79



4

Key findings – overall impression

73% of those who responded 
thought the plans would 
improve Weston General 
Hospital

84% liked the plan to have 
more care for older people

88% liked the plan to offer 
more planned operations

However, there was concern that some patients will travel to another hospital for their care

P
age 80



5

What we heard about care for all ages

➢ We wanted to know whether people are clear that services will remain 
available for people of all ages at Weston General Hospital

Agree , 83%

Disagree, 
17%

Hospital will include services for all ages

‘I really like the sound of it. It sounds like you’re 

really thinking about the people that live in 

Weston and what they actually need, rather 

than what the hospital wants to show off. That’s 

the bit that makes the difference’ [NHS Staff, via 

pop-in session]

• 8 out of 10 said that they were pleased with plans for additional support for frail and older people

P
age 81



6

What we heard about specialist care in a 
neighbouring hospital

• 73% of people understood our plans for specialist care after an 
emergency

Suggestions about how we could support people who are transferred 
included:

➢ providing a free or subsidised shuttle between hospital sites 

➢ free/cheaper parking and direct public transport routes

➢ providing people with access to technology to contact loved ones and support to 
use

➢ providing access to laundry services and items such as books and toiletries if 
people have no visitors to bring things

P
age 82



7

What we heard about planned surgery
• 88% were positive about offering more planned surgery at 

Weston General Hospital

• Overall 75% said they would be happy to have planned surgery 
at the hospital [varied by area] 
• May be able to have surgery more quickly

• Would have more choice

• Were familiar with the hospital

• Reduce pressure on other hospitals

• Parking

• People thought we could do practical things to encourage 
people to choose WGH for planned surgery such as a 
promotional campaign and publicising shorter waiting time

• The main barrier for people not choosing WGH for their 
planned care is the time and distance travelling to and from 
the hospital and lack of confidence in the hospitals 
reputation 

‘I think shorter waiting times 

would be compelling for many! 

Also clarifying the standard of 

care and related services (e.g. 

physio) would be as good. 

Provide free parking  -

especially if people are having 

to spend money on petrol 

traveling to Weston’ [Bristol 

resident via Citizens’ Panel’

P
age 83



8

Sharing information about the plans

• General promotion and media campaigns 
using local tv, radio and newspaper

• Direct communication such as posting 
leaflets

• Working through others, such as placing 
news items in newsletters

‘There might be some upset 

surrounding the plans so 

there needs to be a 

campaign to highlight the 

benefits as much as 

possible’ [North Somerset 

resident via Citizens’ Panel]

People said that it is important to raise awareness in the community about what is planned 

and why and to help dispel some of  the myths

P
age 84



9

What we heard from NHS staff

• NHS staff were just as likely as members of the public to be positive about the plans overall, 
including the plans to offer more planned surgery and care for frail and older people at Weston 
General 

• Some suggested that it was important to communicate clearly and quickly with staff about 
how the plans might affect them; clarify arrangements for working across hospitals and to 
build staff moral

• A number of teams/departments within UHBW, and in particular, those working on site at Weston 
General Hospital, got in touch to ensure all interdependent services are being considered in 
workforce planning

While the 8-week engagement period has ended, staff engagement continues and will be ongoing 
throughout the programme to ensure that staff are fully informed and have opportunities to 
continue to contribute to the plans

P
age 85



10

Whilst there was a lot of positivity there were 
some concerns too  

• That some patients will travel to another hospital for their specialist care

• That there is work to do to build up the reputation of and trust in Weston General Hospital

• Whether there will be the funding and workforce available to put the plans into practice

• Whether the system will be able to work together to provide joined up care

Whilst not a specific engagement topic one quarter of respondents wanted A&E hours to be 

extended 

P
age 86



11

Next steps
• Reflecting the themes from the engagement in 

our implementation plans including:

• Working with local authorities and transport 
providers to strengthen local transport links

• Improving our communications to promote 
quality of care and services 

• More joint working with local partners to 
strengthen care pathways across 
organisations

• Working with system partners to identify 
funding and to develop a workforce plan that 
is deliverable    

• Continuing to engage and test our plans through 
patient and public representation on the 
Programme Group and other engagement routes

‘If these proposals are put in place, this would 

be brilliant. How much confidence is there 

that it will all come to pass? Is there funding? 

The service proposals sound good for older 

people. Like the idea of the same day 

emergency service with no waiting around for 

investigations and the possibility of returning 

home with support if needed the same day’ 

[Community group meeting]

P
age 87



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

North Somerset Council 
 
REPORT TO THE HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
DATE OF MEETING: 13 OCTOBER 2022 
 
SUBJECT OF REPORT: ADULT MENTAL HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
AND MENTAL HEALTH STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT 
 
TOWN OR PARISH: ALL 
 
OFFICER/MEMBER PRESENTING: GEORGIE MACARTHUR, CONSULTANT 
IN PUBLIC HEALTH   
 
KEY DECISION: NO 
 
REASON: FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION 
  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
Members of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel are asked to review the findings and 
recommendations of the Adults Mental Health Needs Assessment and to provide feedback 
about their implications in relation to development of North Somerset’s forthcoming Mental 
Health Strategy. 
 
1. SUMMARY OF REPORT 
The Adults Mental Health Needs Assessment focuses on mental health need for the 
population aged over 18, with a specific scope regarding common mental health disorders, 
severe mental illness (schizophrenia, bipolar disorder and other psychoses) and suicide. 
Consideration is given to risk factors for mental ill-health, prevalence of mental health 
conditions, health service use and morbidity and mortality (incorporating links between 
mental health and physical health). Twenty recommendations are made on the basis of the 
data and feedback analysed, all of which are being considered during development of the 
Mental Health Strategy and, using evidence and guidance, collaboratively translated into 
relevant actions that will effectively address the needs identified.  
 
The Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel are invited to review the data and 
recommendations and to provide feedback to be considered during development of the 
Mental Health Strategy and Action Plan.  
 
2. DETAILS 
 
The North Somerset Mental Health Strategy will focus on all stages of the lifecourse from 
the early years through to older age and it is anticipated that it will have a five-year timeline 
of 2023-2028. Development of the strategy is being informed by a combination of: 

• Adult-focused and children and young people-focused needs assessments  

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



2 
 

• The findings of consultation and engagement with North Somerset residents, people 
with lived experience, and a range of partners and stakeholders 

• Review of evidence and best practice for the actions and interventions that will 
deliver the greatest benefit for improving mental health outcomes and reducing 
inequalities.  

Consultation and engagement activity is underway. 
 
The needs assessment focuses on the prevalence of common mental health disorders, 
severe mental illness, and suicide, as well as risk factors for mental ill-health and 
associated morbidity and mortality, with the aim of highlighting areas of unmet need and 
recommending areas for action to address those needs. The quantitative data analysed 
incorporated local, regional and national datasets, while qualitative input was obtained from 
previously held consultations, including those conducted to support development of the joint 
North Somerset Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Community Mental Health 
Framework, as well as Healthwatch. 
 
Key findings (with data presented for 2019/20 unless otherwise indicated), include the 
following:  

• The prevalence of diagnosed depression in adults was 13.7%, equivalent to 24,600 
people, which is higher than the South West and England average, and a rising trend 
is evident. 

• The prevalence of self-reported anxiety symptoms consistent with high anxiety in 
North Somerset was 22%, which is similar to the South West and England averages 
(21 and 22%, respectively). The prevalence was relatively consistent to 2019/20. 

• The prevalence of severe mental illness in people of all ages was 0.78%, equivalent 
to 1,749 people, which is slightly lower than the South West and England averages 
(0.87% and 0.93%, respectively). 

• The rate of emergency admissions for self-harm are higher than for the South West 
and England with a rising trend over recent years. 

• The rate of suicide is 10/100,000 population, which is similar to the South West and 
England average, and the rate has been similar over recent years. The rate of 
suicide is approximately three-fold higher among males compared to females. 

• Rates of hospital admissions due to alcohol-related conditions are higher than the 
South West and England averages. 

 
In relation to inequalities, the needs assessment demonstrates that: 

• For many outcomes, geographical inequalities were evident, with the prevalence of 
mental illness, and risk factors for mental ill-health, being higher in Weston-super-
Mare, compared to other areas of North Somerset.  

• Residents with a diagnosed mental health condition were more likely to smoke, use 
substances and have physical co-morbidities compared to the general population. 

 
Consultation and engagement highlighted the importance of:  

• Prevention and early intervention. 
• Locally available, accessible support and the value of co-developed activities and 

peer support. 
• Interventions that follow a trauma-responsive approach. 

Page 90



3 
 

• Services that are fully joined-up, visible and that allow for signposting between 
services. 

• Addressing stigma and unconscious bias across services.  
• Support that is family-focused, addressing the relationship between parental and 

child mental wellbeing, where appropriate. 
• Working life that protects from stress and anxiety. 
• The need to address the risk of digital exclusion. 

 
Recommendations in the needs assessment address the above points and are being 
mapped against overarching themes and emerging objectives in the strategy’s developing 
action plan, using evidence to guide the development of interventions to those that deliver 
the greatest benefit. It is anticipated that overarching themes may map to those in North 
Somerset’s joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2024, including (i) Prevention, (ii) 
Early Intervention and (iii) Supported and Living Well, including a focus on the lifecourse 
and action to address health inequalities. 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board approved allocation of joint funding from the local authority 
public health grant and Bristol, North Somerset and South Gloucestershire (BNSSG) 
Integrated Care Board (ICB) to support implementation of the mental health strategy, 
totalling £100K for actions relating to adults and older adults and £100K for actions relating 
to children and young people. During development of the strategy, a targeted prioritisation 
and funding process will be developed to allocate funding to priority interventions. 
 
4. LEGAL POWERS AND IMPLICATIONS 
Development of the strategy is overseen by the Mental Health Strategy Board, and approval 
of the strategy will be sought from the North Somerset Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
5. CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
Climate change and environmental implications will be considered during development of 
the action plan.  
 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT 
Risks will be discussed and mitigated in partnership with the Mental Health Strategy Board 
and identified to the Health and Wellbeing Board, as appropriate, for discussion and 
resolution. 
 
7. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
Development of the action plan will incorporate consideration of how to most effectively 
address inequalities in lived experience and outcomes relating to mental health and 
wellbeing. A proportionate universalism approach may be most appropriate to ensure 
universal action, but weighted to where, and among whom, need is greatest. 
 
8. CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
Attention will be given to ensuring that the Mental Health Strategy and action plan reflects 
North Somerset Council’s vision of being open, fair and green, through inclusion of 
consultation and engagement and a central focus on reducing health inequalities. The 
Mental Health Strategy will also link with a range of North Somerset strategies and care will 

Page 91



4 
 

be taken to ensure that the strategy reflects and/or dovetails with existing strategy and 
action via the Council and the wider system. 
 
AUTHOR 
Dr Georgie MacArthur, Consultant in Public Health 
 
APPENDICES 
Appendix 1: Summary powerpoint presentation 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None  

Page 92



Adult Mental Health & Wellbeing

A Needs Assessment for the North Somerset Population aged over 18 years

Lewis Peake, StR Public Health; Georgie MacArthur, Consultant in Public Health 

P
age 93



Development of the MHNA

• Quantitative data from range of national, regional and local data sets

• Patient-public involvement via secondary use of data 

• Engagement with the North Somerset Mental Health Strategy Board

Open, Fairer, Greener

P
age 94



Scope

Open, Fairer, Greener

• Adults only - common mental health disorders, severe mental illness and suicide

• Much of the data available represents mental health and wellbeing in 2019/20

• Considers measures of need across the life cycle including risk factors, use of services, 
morbidity and mortality

• Prepared prior to cost-of-living crisis 

P
age 95



Open, Fairer, Greener

Mental health needs

Summary of key quantitative data

P
age 96



Open, Fairer, Greener

1. Diagnosed depression

• Prevalence in North Somerset: 14% (SW 12%; England 12%)

• ~24,600 people

P
age 97



Open, Fairer, Greener

2. Self-reported anxiety symptoms

• Prevalence of high anxiety in North Somerset: 22% (SW 21%; England 22%)

P
age 98



Open, Fairer, Greener

5. Severe mental illness

• Prevalence in North Somerset: 0.78%

• South West: 0.87%

• England: 0.93%

P
age 99



Open, Fairer, Greener

Emergency hospital admission for self-harm, standardised admissions ratio, by ward (2015-19) [12] 

 

Emergency hospital admissions (rate) – all ages

3. Self-harm

P
age 100



Open, Fairer, Greener

• North Somerset (rate): 10.5/100,000

• South West: 11.3/100,000

• England: 10.1/100,000

• Rate of suicide 3-fold higher among 

males higher vs females

Suicide rate (all persons)

4. Suicide

P
age 101



Physical health 

Open, Fairer, Greener

Proportion of adults with a long-term mental health condition who smoke (2019-20)

Mortality rate in adults with Severe Mental Illness between 18 and 75 years (2016 – 2018), as an 

excess risk 

North Somerset Bristol South Glos South West Region England 

454.0% 
(394.0% - 521.0%) 

416.4% 
 (376.1% - 460.1%) 

415.2% 
(355.2% - 483.2%)  

417.6% 365.2% 

 

Mortality rate in adults with Severe Mental Illness between 18 and 75 years (2016 – 2018), as an 

excess risk 

North Somerset Bristol South Glos South West Region England 

454.0% 
(394.0% - 521.0%) 

416.4% 
 (376.1% - 460.1%) 

415.2% 
(355.2% - 483.2%)  

417.6% 365.2% 

 

Mortality rate in adults with severe mental illness (aged 18-75 years) as excess risk (2016-8) 

Proportion of adults with a long-term mental health condition who smoke (2019/20) 

North Somerset Bristol South Glos South West Region England 

24.9% 
(17.8% - 32.0%) 

30.1% 
 (25.5% - 34.7%) 

18.6% 
(13.1% - 24.1%)  

24.3% 25.8% 

 

Proportion of adults with a long-term mental health condition who smoke (2019/20) 

North Somerset Bristol South Glos South West Region England 

24.9% 
(17.8% - 32.0%) 

30.1% 
 (25.5% - 34.7%) 

18.6% 
(13.1% - 24.1%)  

24.3% 25.8% 

 

P
age 102



Open, Fairer, Greener

Including:

• Poverty

• Deprivation

• Fuel poverty

• Unemployment/ insecure employment

• Housing and homelessness

• Social isolation 

• Domestic violence and abuse

• Crime

Wider determinants/ risk factors

• Alcohol use

• Drug use

• Overweight/ obesity

P
age 103



Open, Fairer, Greener

The population voice

Lower-level, accessible, 
community-based support 

(including peer support)
Work life that protects from 

anxiety and stress

Addressing stigma 
and unconscious 

bias

Addressing 
digital exclusion

Trauma-responsive services and 
interventions

Family-focused support

Joined-up & 
visible services

Focus on prevention & early 
intervention

Mental health support for people 
using alcohol and/or drugs

P
age 104



Open, Fairer, Greener

Recommendations

1. Strategic direction and system

• Focus on prevention, using proportionate universalism and addressing wider 

determinants of health, consolidating holistic support and targeted work to address 

inequalities

• Incorporate involvement of people with lived experience

• Consider evolving evidence about impact of COVID-19

• Delivery of trauma-responsive services across the system

• Understanding the prevalence of adversity and trauma in the population

P
age 105



Open, Fairer, Greener

2. Commissioners and providers

• Greater focus on physical and mental health 

• Holistic support, including community services and addressing determinants of mental ill-

health e.g. social isolation, housing, finances

• Action to address admissions for self-harm (including audit of practice)

• Review of social prescribing (underway)

P
age 106



Open, Fairer, Greener

3. In response to consultation and feedback

• To address mental health need among those dependent on alcohol and/or drugs

• Provision of accessible, locally available services, including drop-in (underway)

• Consistent framework for assessment of impact around stigma, wellbeing, holistic 

support

• Common branding and ready signposting between services

• Family focus in mental health services

• Action in the workplace

• Transitions between CYP and adult services

P
age 107



Open, Fairer, Greener

4. Data and monitoring

• In-depth analysis about self-harm

• Ward-level data for certain metrics and protected characteristics – consider how best to 

collect data and monitor impact

P
age 108



Open, Fairer, Greener

Emergent themes (in development & on the basis of the MHNA only)

Prevention Early intervention
Supported and Living 

Well

Lifecourse perspective

Tackling inequalities

• Wider determinants

• Protective factors and 

resilience

• Adversity and trauma

• Community & 

strengths-based 

initiatives

• Support following self-harm

• Trauma-responsive services

• Effective integration 

• Stigma and unconscious bias

• Signposting and advice

• Workplace health

• Family focused services

• Dual diagnosis

• Addressing physical 

health alongside mental 

health

• Wider determinants 

P
age 109



Thank you

Georgie.MacArthur@n-somerset.gov.uk

North Somerset Mental Health Strategy Board

With thanks to Dr Lewis Peake, StR Public Health 

P
age 110

mailto:Georgie.MacArthur@n-somerset.gov.uk


1 
 

Health Overview Policy and Scrutiny Panel  
Work Plan October 2022  

(to be updated following each Panel meeting) 
 

The Panel will consider issues of significant public concern, areas of poor performance, and areas where Members think the 
Council could provide better value for money.  This is a “live” document and will evolve as priorities or circumstances change. 

 

SECTION ONE – ACTIVE & SCHEDULED projects identified in the overarching Strategic Work Plan   
Topic Reason for scrutiny  

 
Method of scrutiny 
and reporting process     

Timeline Progress Lead 

Healthy 
Weston 
Phase 2 

Statutory: to consider proposed service changes; 
determine potential “Substantial Variation” in service; 
and consider options for further 
engagement/consultation if appropriate 

Preliminary briefings followed by 
substantial variation 
determination at full Panel on 
20/04/22 

Preliminary Briefing 
25/03/22 
Report to full Panel 
on 20/04/22. 
engagement plans at 
23/06/22 panel 
Report to 
13/10/22Panel:engag
ement outcomes 

See S.4 below for 
progress 

 

UHBW 
Merger 
Integration  

To monitor progress on the ongoing structural 
integration of the former UHW and WAH Trusts 

Working Group established Ongoing – regular 
periodic meetings. 
Last mtg 27/09/22 

WG mtgs: 10/12/21, 
22/02/2022 and 
27/09/22 

Chair 

 

SECTION TWO – proposed projects (listed in priority order).  These must be agreed at Panel and will be referred for 
discussion at Chairs and Vice Chairs – for inclusion within the overarching Scrutiny Work Plan:- 
Topic Reason for scrutiny  Proposed method of scrutiny 

& reporting process 
Timeline Lead  

Long Covid (LC) To consider: 
• scale of LC in N.Somerset 
• Is LC being identified effectively? 
• Are people accessing appropriate services they need, 

in a timely manner? 
• What further support could the Council and health 

system put in place to support sufferers and their 
families 

TBA TBA TBA 

 

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 10



2 
 

SECTION THREE – planned briefings, workshops, and informal Panel meetings.   Outcomes may, with Chairman’s 
agreement, generate Panel agenda items (for inclusion in S4 below) or, with Panel agreement, escalation to S2 above:-  
Topic Reason for Scrutiny engagement Date Outcome Progress 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
HOSP-led all Member briefing 

To brief Members on the development of the strategy vision and public 
consultation process  

06/04/21 Progress reports to future 
HOSP meetings 

Completed 

Track and Trace 
All Member Briefing 

Reference from full Council 07/07/21 Members’ engagement Completed 

Minors Programme and AWP 
Patient reconfiguration 

Sirona and AWP briefed Members on plans to reduce the numbers of patients 
dealt with at ED (Minors Programme): and the relocation of Mental Heath 
Services from Southmead to Callington Road 

22/02/22 Members’ engagement Completed 

Quality Accounts 2022 (QAs) HOSP is a statutory consultee.  QAs provide Members with opportunities to 
engage with providers on service performance and  priorities going forwards  

Various To respond to QAs as 
appropriate 

Completed 

Integrated Care System 
All Councillor Briefing 

Update on implementation of ICS and implications of the Government white 
paper/legislation.   

05/10/22   

SECTION FOUR - agenda reports to the Panel meetings as agreed by the Chairman.   This section provides for the 
forward planning of agendas for the coming year and a record of recent panel meeting activity.   Item outcomes may include 
proposing further work such as additional briefings or potential projects for inclusion on the STRATEGIC WORK PLAN (S2 above). 
 
 

Item Purpose  Outcome 
HOSP:  20 April 2022 

Annual NSC Directorate 
Statements and partner 
plans/priorities for 2022-23 

To consider the aims and priorities of our principal health partners and the Adult Services and 
Public Health directorates, bearing these in mind when considering its work plan for the year 
ahead 

For noting and feedback 

Dental Services in North 
Somerset 

To review service provision and performance Panel to investigate issue further 

Eating Disorders To review service provision and performance For noting and feedback 

HOSP: 13 October 2022 
ICB Performance report – primary 
care and ambulance services 

Report ICB: to consider current challenges & performance, indirect impacts on the system and 
how to mitigate/improve; recovery plans; and comparative analysis of performance both within 
North Somerset and regionally/nationally  

 

Winter Pressures Report ICB: to consider current forward planning, expected pressures and risks – including the  
impacts  of the cost of living crisis 

 

Healthy Weston update Report ICB: Outcome of  public engagement  
Mental Health Needs assessment Report Director of Public Health - update  

HOSP: 16 February 2023 
   

P
age 112



3 
 

 

SECTION 5 - Recommendations - Response from Executive Member 
Area for investigation/ 

Recommendations 
When were the recommendations to 

the Executive agreed? 
Expect answer by (first panel 

meeting after recommendations 
were submitted) 

   
 

SECTION 6 - Progress and follow-up on implementing Panel recommendations 

Panel Recommendation Date of 
Response Actions – implementation progress 

   
 

P
age 113



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 ICB Performance Report of Primary care and Ambulance services
	7 Winter Pressures
	8 Healthy Weston Phase 2 outputs from public engagement
	Recommendations
	1. Executive Summary
	2. Introduction
	3. What we achieved through public engagement
	4. People and stakeholders we engaged with
	5. Focus for this phase in engagement
	6.Key themes from what we heard
	7.How we will use what we learn
	Appendix A: New Model of Care for Weston General Hospital
	Appendix B: HW2 engagement themes summary

	8 Healthy Weston Phase 2 outputs from public engagement
	8.2 Healthy Weston - appendix 2 engagement themes

	8 Healthy Weston Phase 2 outputs from public engagement
	8.3 Healthy Weston Phase 2  presentation

	9 Adult Mental Health Needs Assessment and Mental Health Strategy development
	1.	Summary of Report
	2.	Details
	3.	Financial Implications
	4.	legal powers and implications
	5.	climate change and environmental implications
	6.	risk management
	7.	Equality Implications
	8.	Corporate Implications

	9 Adult Mental Health Needs Assessment and Mental Health Strategy development
	9.2 Adult Mental Health Needs Assessment  presentation

	10 HOSP Work Plan October 22
	SECTION 6 - Progress and follow-up on implementing Panel recommendations


